
SHELBYVILLE PLAN COMMISSION
SUMMARIZED MEETING MINUTES

March 28, 2022

Mike Evans called the meeting to order.

Members Present:  Joanne Bowen, Perry Richards, Ben Hall, Doug Cassidy, Mike Evans,
Wade Lewis, John Kuntz, Joe Lux, Jeremy Ruble

Members Absent: Winnie Soviar, Josh Martin, Gary Nolley

Staff Present:  Adam Rude, Allan Henderson

Approval of Minutes:  Doug Cassidy motioned to approve the previous minutes and Joe Lux
seconded the motion.  Voice vote passed 9 - 0.

Old Business:  None

New Business: ** PC 2022-04 didn’t meet publication deadlines so it wasn’t heard.

PC 2022-02 Pyatt Builders Twelve Oaks PUD Concept Plan Revision

Adam Rude read the petition and Paul Klare(?), petitioner’s representative, discussed their
proposed plans for Phase II of Twelve Oaks.

- Joe Lux had no questions.
- John Kuntz had no questions
- Wade Lewis had no questions but said he thought it was a solid concept plan.
- Doug Cassidy asked if there would be any condos.  The answer wasn’t audible.
- Ben Hall had no questions.
- Perry Richards had no questions.
- Joanne Bowen asked if what appears to be a stub road is actually an ingress/egress and

Mr. Klare said it’s a stub road to the subdivision to the south that’s been approved but
not built yet.

- Mike Evans said he liked the layout.  He also asked if an agreement had been made
with the HOA of Twelve Oaks in regards to the entrance sign on Twin Lakes Boulevard
off of Progress and asked if there was any type of signage planned for the McKay Road
access.  Adam Rude said that other HOAs have signs in the city’s right of way.  Mr. Klare
said they may put a monument sign at the entrance off of McKay as well.  Discussion
followed regarding signage.

1



Mr. Evans closed board comment and opened the meeting to public comment.  There being no
one who approached the podium and no comment on other public forums, Mr. Evans closed
public comment and reopened it to the board.

- Joe Lux asked when infrastructure would be completed.  Mr. Klare said they’d probably
start end of summer or early fall so ready for building construction late spring 2023.

With no further questions/comments from the board, Mr. Evans called for a motion.  Wade Lewis
motioned to approve the Twelve Oaks PUD concept plan revision as presented and Joe Lux
seconded the motion.  Ballot vote:  Joanne Bowen yes, Perry Richards - yes, Ben Hall - yes,
Doug Cassidy - yes, Mike Evans - yes.  **Wade Lewis, John Kuntz, Jeremy Ruble & Joe Lux’s
votes were inaudible.

PC 2022-05 The Porter Center TIF

Jenny Meltzer, city attorney presented the petition, containing a Resolution to remove The
Porter Center from the Downtown TIF and create a TIF of its own.

- Joanne Bowen verified that it was in the Riverfront zone and Ms. Meltzer said yes.
- Perry Richards had no questions.
- Ben Hall had no questions.
- Doug Cassidy asked why Shelby Tire’s building wouldn’t be included in the TIF district.

Jennifer Meltzer said Shelby Tire is currently in the Downtown TIF.  More discussion
followed as to why it will remain in its current TIF.

- Wade Lewis had no questions.
- Jeremy Ruble had no questions.
- John Kuntz had no questions.
- Joe Lux asked the little strip to the north was left out.  Jenny said it was the new

storybook trail the Blue River Foundation is doing.
- Mike Evans asked if the shared drive needed to be included and Jenny said no.

Mr. Evans closed comments to the board and opened it up to the public.  There being no public
comment, Mr. Evans closed public comment and called for a motion on the resolution for the
TIF.  Doug Cassidy motioned for a favorable recommendation and Joanne Bowen seconded the
motion.  Ballot vote:  Doug Cassidy - yes, Joanne Bowen - yes, Ben Hall - yes, John Kuntz -
yes, Mike Evans - yes.  **Wade Lewis, Jeremy Ruble, Perry Richards & Joe Lux’s votes were
inaudible.

Miscellaneous:

Discussion: Proposed apartments and mixed use development at the existing coke plant

2



Adam Rude explained the concept and Sam Riders(?) and Craig Mcormick discussed the
proposed plan.

- Joe Lux had no questions.
- John Kuntz had no questions.
- Jeremy Ruble had no questions.
- Wade Lewis had no questions.
- Doug Cassidy asked if the city would be redone due to the increased traffic the proposed

development would generate.  Adam Rude said it would be looked at and further
discussion ensued.

- Ben Hall asked about shared office space and Mr. Riders said there’s ongoing
discussion that includes it.

- Joanne Bowen asked if the current entrance off of Harrison Street would still be an
ingress/egress and would it be two lanes.  Mr. McCormick said they plan to use the
existing curb cut, but it might be right turn only.  Joanne asked if they had talked with the
neighbors and was told they’ve been involved through Adam Rude.  Ms. Bowen
expressed some concern with traffic and the Porter Center.  Adam discussed signage
that could address those concerns.  Further discussion ensued.

- Mike Evans asked if the retail frontage of the coke building would be available before the
apartments were ready.  Mr. Riders said it may be done sooner.  More discussion
followed.  Mike asked about the number of elevators in the apartment space and Mr.
McCormick said they’ll look into it.

- (?) asked parking spaces and Mr. McCormick said that the parking spaces next to the
coke plant would be for the businesses in the coke building.

- (?) asked if the garage space would be exclusively for the tenants and the answer was
that there would be assigned parking spaces for the tenants in the garage but the
parking off of Tompkins would not be assigned.  They will be first come, first served.

- Doug Cassidy asked what brought this project to Shelbyville.  Mr. Riders said all the jobs
and growth that are coming into the area.  They like the area and think there’s a need.

- (?) asked if the interiors would be reminiscent of the coke building and Mr. McCormick
said they’re going to try.

- (?) said that the rental rates seem to be extremely reasonable and asked if the finishes
in the apartments would be better quality and Mr. McCormick said they would be nicely
finished.

- Mike Evans said there’s a need for apartments like this and several other board
members agreed.  Discussion followed.

- Joe Lux asked where other developments they’ve done are and Mr. McCormick
referenced the ones shown in Indianapolis and one in Lafayette.

- Mike Evans asked if all of them were mixed use and was told that most of them are.

Adjournment:  Doug Cassidy motioned to adjourn the meeting and Ben Hall seconded the
motion.

Meeting adjourned

3


